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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Anaconda Main Post Office is a two story structure
of reinforced concrete and structural steel con-
struction. The building is a well-preserved, unaltered
example of Neo-Classical design in the Greek mode. The
raised basement wall is dressed with sandstone, and red
brick faces the two story main section and flanking
single story wings. Seven bays divide the facade of
the building's central section which 1is dominated by
four fluted columns of colossal order. The monumental
columns with Ionic capitals front the recessed entry
portico and support a full sandstone entablature with
molded projecting cornice. A copper-clad hipped roof
covers the central section.

PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Anaconda Post Office is two stories in height on a
raised basement. The foundation and basement consist
of concrete and brick. The first and second floors are
framed with structural steel and the exterior is faced
with red brick. Sandstone 1s used for exterior trim
and granite for the main entry stairs. The roof
consists of a copper-clad hipped portion and flat
built-up tar composition portion.

The front facade (east) is symmetrical in elevation and
classically proportioned. The facade consists of a
two-story central salient flanked by single story
wings. The central section projects slightly from the
wings and is divided into seven equally spaced bays.
The five central bays are recessed to form an entry
portico. The wings each contain a single window bay.
The raised basement wall 1is faced with sandstone
(dressed) with a wide sandstone water table between the
basement facing and first floor. Red brick faces the
wings and corner bays of the central section. Six
granite steps, extending the 1length of the entry
portico and flanked by sandstone buttresses, provide
access to the granite entry landing. Free-standing
cast iron light standards with milk glass globes rest
atop the buttresses.
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The entry portico 1is dominated by a colonnade of
colossal order consisting of four fluted sandstcne
columns which rise from the entry landing to the top of
the second story. The columns are topped by Ionic
capitals and support a sandstone entablature which
extends across the facade. The entablature is band of
dentils, and projecting molded cornice. The columns
front the recessed entry ianding which is divided into
five bays.

The exterior first and second floor walls of the entry
portico are faced with dressed sandstone. The three
centered entry bays consist of double steel doors with
single glass panels in each (original doors of plate
brass were replaced). Three-light transom windows
fronted by ornate cast iron grilles are located above
the doors. The door surrounds and door heads are also
cast iron. This composition is ornately framed by
carved sandstone.

The architrave consists of a flat molding ornamented by
chaplet (bead) and simple water leaf molding. The flat
entry arch of the center doors is topped by a
pedimented frontispiece supported by scrolled brackets.
Egg and dart molding lies in the dentil bands of the
horizontal and raking cornices. The flanking entry
vays consist of the same motif as the central entry
bay, except that the arch i1s topped by a flat cornice.
The flanking window bays consist of paired 4-over-4
light wooden sash windows topped by paired 2-light
transom windows. A sandstone panel consisting of two
sections is located beneath the sandstone sills.

The second story consists of five window bays aligned

over the first floor bays. A sill course in a
Vitruvian scroll motif marks the bottoms of the
windows. These windows are identical to those of the

first floor, except for the omission of the transom
window.
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The end bays of the central section consist of a single
window in each bay on the first floor. The ends of the
bay (outside corner and interior corner) are defined by
flat sandstone pilasters which extend from the water
table to the entablature topping the second story. The
area between the pilasters is faced with red brick.
The window bay consists of a single 4-over-4 double
hung wooden sash window. The bay is framed in brick
with a flat gauged brick arch and sandstone sill.

The flanking wings are a single story in height and
faced with red brick. The corners are defined by
rusticated sandstone. Molded sandstone cornices upon
which rest solid brick and sandstone parapets terminate
the walls. The single window bay in each wing consists
of paired 4-over-4 light wooden sash windows topped by
paired 2-light transom windows. The window bays are
framed by flat gauged brick arches completed by sand-
stone Kkeystones and sandstone sills. The central
section is topped by a hipped copper clad roof which
terminates behind the cornice. Flat built-up tar
composition roofs top the flanking wings.

The side facades are faced with red brick and identical
to each other. Three bays divide the first story of
the wings and second story of the central portion. The
treatment of the basement facing, water table, parapet,
and entablature is identical to that described for the
front facade. The window bays of the first floor bays
are also identical except for the omission of the
transom windows.

The rear facade is symmetrically arranged with three
first floor window bays flanking each side of the
rearward projecting loading vestibule and platform.
The window bays are identical to the first floor
windows of the side facades. The loading platform
contains three double hinged doors overcovered by a
projecting metal marquee. The exposed wall above the
marquee is solid brick capped by a sandstone cornice.




NP8 Form 10-900-a OMB No. 1024-0018
[<2 -] Exp. 10-31-84

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventory—Nomination Form

Coqtinuation sheet Anaconda PO ltem number 7 Page 3
Red brick with sandstone trim faces the walls. The
second story (central section) is recessed from the
first floor facade. The second story 1is brick and

divided by five bays. Two windows identical to those
of the second floor of the side facades flank each side
and a bricked-in central bay. The sides of the loading
vestibule each contain a single 6-over-6 light double
hung wooden sash window. Flat gauged brick arches and
sandstone sills frame the windows.

Interior materials consist of the following: basement:
concrete floors, brick walls ("slum brick" or waste
brick from the Anaconda smelter site), and concrete
ceiling; first floor 1lobby: carpeted floor (over
terrazzo and marble), plaster walls with 3-foot marble
wainscotting and marble pilasters, and decorative
plaster ceiling; postmaster's office: hardwood floors,
plaster walls with 3-foot hardwood wainscotting, and
plaster ceiling; work room: hardwood floors, plaster
walls with 7-foot wood wainscotting, and plaster
ceiling; swing room: same as work room; second floor
offices and halls: terrazzo floors in halls and
linoleum floors in offices, plaster walls and plaster
ceilings; restrooms: terrazzo floors, plaster walls
with 6-foot marble wainscotting, and plaster ceilings.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Anaconda Main Post Office is a well-preserved and
unaltered example of a medium-sized combination post
office and federal office building. Architecturally,
the building is one of the most monumental and imposing
buildings in the city. Although a Depression era
building, the design is strongly rooted in the Beaux-
Arts and Neo-Classical tradition of the early Twentieth
Century. The entry portico with Ionic columns of
Colossal order demark the design's Classical influence
and distinguish it from the city's other architecturally
significant public buildings. The building was also
the city's first federal building and was constructed
during a period of severe economic hardship on the
local level. As such, it represents the federal gov-
ernment's response to an era of economic emergency.

ARCHITECTURE i

Quality of design and skilled craftsmanship are pro-
jected in the monumental facade of this building. The
rigid symmetry of the facade combined with the
Classically-derived ornamentation mark this building as
an example of Beaux-Arts Classicism. At the time of
the buildings construction, this style was strongly
conservative, projecting an image of a stable gov-
ernment founded 1in a long artistic and cultural
tradition. The design represents the end of a federal
design philosophy and the transition to the simplified
Starved Classical buildings of the mid- to late-1930s
whose designs were dictated by standardization and
efficiency. Beaux-Arts Classicism had essentially been
abandoned nationally for all but official structures by
the end of the construction of this post office. As
such, the building isof statewide significance under
Criterion A as a relatively rare and well-executed
example of this final phase of the Beaux-Arts
tradition. (Other examples in Montana include the
Lewiston and Havre MPOs, also covered in this
nomination).

i e
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The Anaconda Post Office is also a key member in the
city's group of magnificent public buildings including
the original City Hall (1896), County Courthouse and
Public Library. Its position on Main Street 1links it
with the monumental Classically inspired Hearst Free
Library (1898), 1located one block north, and the
imposing Deer Lodge County Courthouse (1900) which
anchors the north end of Main Street. Both buildings
are listed in the National Register of Historic Places.

The Main Street corridor also contains several other
fine buildings which represent Anaconda's history of
community progress and commercial progress.

POLITICS/GOVERNMENT

The building represents a monumental symbol of the
federal government and was the first federally con-
structed post office in Anaconda. The construction of
the building represents many vyears of local lobbying
efforts. The first attempt to procure a federal
building in Anaconda came in January, 1915 when Rep-
resentative Evans introduced a bill in the House for a
$125,000 appropriation. The onset of WWI and the
nominal federal building program of the 1920s fore-
stalled funding appropriation and construction until
the early 1930s. Although the appropriations for the
building which finally led to its construction preceded
the onset of the Depression, the building symbolizes
the federal government's effort to assist local comm-
unities during a period of national economic emergency.
As a legacy of the Depression era public building
programs of the federal government, the building is
locally significant under Criterion A. It also
represents the stability of the federal government as
did the County Courthouse represent the county's wealth
and the rustic city hall, the city's exuberant growth.

LOCAL CONTEXT

Anaconda, the county seat of Deer Lodge County, has an
estimated population of 10,178 (1984). Anaconda holds
a rich position in Montana history as the "Smelter
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city" and at one time was the location of the world's
largest copper smelter. The Anaconda smokestack,
completed in 1919, is the largest brick stack ever
constructed. With the closure of the smelter in 1980,
the local economy has stagnated. The present economy
is based on a diversification of small business and
industry which includes government, mining,
manufacturing, agriculture, and tourism.

Anaconda was founded in 1883 by copper Kking Marcus
Daly. In seeking a location for a copper smelter to
process the ore mined in nearby Butte, Daly and Morgan
Evans noted the beauty of the area and decided it would

- be the location for the smelter and the town for its
employees. Daly commissioned Evans to purchase the
lands necessary for his new enterprise. The plat was
filed on June 25, 1883. The town was planned under the
guidance of Daly to provide a neat and well planned
layout for his workers.

During the period of the smelter's construction,
workers either rode or walked to the Levengood ranch,
three miles west of present day Anaconda to collect
their mail. The ranch had served as a post office and
stage station since 1878 when Peter Levengood was
commissioned as postmaster.

As a result of the large influx of workers moving to
the growing camp that became Anaconda, a post office
was opened and Clinton H. Moore was appointed as post-
master on July 13, 1883. Moore, who is also credited
with providing the name of Aanaconda for the city,
established a post office in the Frank Mahan drug store
on October 25, 1883.

With the completion of the smelter, Anaconda began to
grow rapidly with the 1influx of smelter workers,
businessmen, tradespeople, and various other ©pro-
fessional groups. By 1890 the population reached
3,975. The late 1880s and 1890s saw the development of
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many of Anaconda's fine public and commercial build-
ings. During this period Marcus Daly backed his town of
Anaconda against W.A. Clark, who backed Helena, in the
bid for the state capitol. After a several million
dollar war to influence votes, Helena won out.
Anaconda continued to prosper and grow with populations
of 9,450 in 1900, 10,134 in 1910, and 12,677 and 1920.

The Depression of the 1920s hit the copper industry,
but Anaconda continued to grow, reaching its peak
population of 13,487 in 1930. However, the Depression
of the 1930s resulted in more severe impact and by 1940
the population decreased to 11,004. The vears of the
World War II era returned the city to a period of
prosperity and a leveling of the economy.

The Anaconda Post Office is located on Main Street in
the southern portion of the city's commercial district.
Adjacent uses within the post office block include the
famous Montana Hotel (1889) to the north, and various
commercial uses to the west. Unfortunately, the
Montana Hotel which was once listed on the National
Historic Register has been truncated from its original
four stories down to two stories (removed from
Register). Across Main Street to the east are the
B.P.O.E. Building (1914, three stories, brick) and the
Anaconda Standard Building (1889, two stories,
substantially altered). Diagonally across the Third
Street intersection, the uses along Main Street include
the present Anaconda Standard building (two-story
brick) and the Washoe Theater (1931, Art Deco).

The block to the south of the post office across Third
Avenue is used as the city park (donated to the city in
1906 by Anaconda Copper). Two other notable public
buildings are located south of the post office along
Main Street: the Hearst Free Library (1898, two-story,
Grecian style, listed in National Historic Register),
and the Deer Lodge County Courthouse (1900, three-story
stone, listed in the National Historic Register). The
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Main Street corridor was identified in a pamphlet
prepared by the 1979 Butte/Anaconda Rehab Action Team
of the Historic American Engineering Record as having
special historical interest and significance.

LOCAL NEWS COVERAGE OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE ANACONDA
MAIN POST
OFFICE

In the local
context the construction of the Anaconda Post Office
was reported in the Anaconda Standard. The first
discussion of a new federal building/post office in
Anaconda was reported in 1915. An article of January
4th reported that the city was in line for a federal
building. During a visit with Representative John M.
Evans in the fall of 1914, Postmaster Ed Burke
suggested that Anaconda should have a federal building
and stated that this city was certainly entitled to
recognition in that way, in as much as other smaller
cities in the state had been favored with public build-
ings. Representative Evans replied with surprise that
"I had supposed all along that Anaconda did have a
‘federal building." The article also indicated that it
had published a special dispatch a few days before
announcing that Evans had introduced a bill providing
for a $125,000 federal building in Anaconda.

However, it was not until 1930 that the prospect of
Anaconda receiving a federal building appeared to be
near. According to a June 23rd article, Congressman
Evans wired Fred M. Davidson, chairman of the Anaconda
democratic central committee, that an appropriations
bill for $150,000 had passed the house. Local busi-
nessmen expressed enthusiasm over the news. The
Anaconda Kiwanis Club had devoted considerable time to
the issuing of "propaganda toward this end".

Although the 1local citizens had hoped to immediate
construction of the new building, construction did not
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commence until 1932. A site along Main Street that was
occupied by the Leland Hotel was purchased for the new
building. This building, formerly known as the Hotel
Jennings, had been constructed around 1889. The John
L. Soderberg Construction Company of Omaha began site
work in April of 1932. By November 1lst, the building
was completed except for the interior work. Completion
was expected in the spring of 1933.

On January 18, 1933, the Standard reported that the
post office would be ready by the first of February.
An article of January 20th announced that the new post
office would open on January 30th. Postmaster Phil
Daniels was readying his crew to prepare for the
upcoming move. The new $120,000 building was described
as very impressive, and it was stated that it would add
much to the business district. On January 28th, it was
reported that the building would open for business the
following Monday. The transfer would close the doors
on another chapter in the nistory of the postal depart-
ment in Anaconda.

An article of January 30th provided a narrative of
Anaconda's postal history. Photos of the original post
office at the Peter Levengood stage station and the new
edifice were included. "Singled sShack to Marble
Mansion" read the caption." "It is a long step from the
first post office in this district in 1878 to the
present architectural «creation at Main and Third
streets. It is a step from prairie grass to pavement,
a step from hewed logs to marble, a step from a wooden
well bucket to a frigidaire drinking fountain."
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5. Anaconda Standard, various articles 1930-1932.
6. "Anaconda is in Line for a Federal Home", Anaconda Standard,
January 4, 1915.
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